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Item 8.01.

Other Events.

Filed as Exhibit 99.1 and Exhibit 99.2 herewith, respectively, are (a) the audited consolidated financial statements of New York State Catholic Health Plan,
Inc. (d/b/a Fidelis Care New York) (“Fidelis”) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 and (b) the unaudited consolidated financial
statements of Fidelis as of September 30, 2017 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 and 2016.
Item 9.01.

Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(a) Financial Statements of Businesses Acquired.
The audited consolidated financial statements of Fidelis as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are attached hereto as Exhibit 99.1. The
unaudited consolidated financial statements of Fidelis as of September 30, 2017 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 and 2016 are attached
hereto as Exhibit 99.2 and are incorporated herein by reference.
(d) Exhibits
Exhibit
Number

Description

23.1

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent auditors

99.1

Audited consolidated financial statements of Fidelis as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

99.2

Unaudited consolidated financial statements of Fidelis as of September 30, 2017 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 and 2016

SIGNATURE
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
hereunto duly authorized.
CENTENE CORPORATION
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Jeffrey A. Schwaneke
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-209252 and 333-217636 on Form S-3 and Registration Statement Nos. 333217634, 333-210376, 333-197737, 333-180976, 333-108467, 333-90976 and 333-83190 on Form S-8 of Centene Corporation of our report dated March 23,
2017 (September 14, 2017 as to Note 17) related to the consolidated financial statements of New York State Catholic Health Plan Inc. (d/b/a Fidelis Care New
York) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, appearing in this Current Report on Form 8-K.
/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Williamsville, New York
March 12, 2018
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
6500 Sheridan Drive
Williamsville, NY 14221
USA
Tel: 716-843-7200
Fax: 716-856-7760
www.deloitte.com
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
The Board of Directors of
New York State Catholic Health Plan, Inc.
(d/b/a Fidelis Care New York) and Subsidiaries
95-25 Queens Boulevard
Rego Park, NY 11374
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of New York State Catholic Health Plan, Inc. (d/b/a Fidelis Care New York) and
Subsidiaries (“Fidelis” or the “Plan”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the related consolidated statements
of operations, changes in net assets, comprehensive income, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Plan’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Plan’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of New York State
Catholic Health Plan, Inc. (d/b/a Fidelis Care New York) and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of its operations, changes in its
net assets, comprehensive income, and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
March 23, 2017 (September 14, 2017 as to Note 17)
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NEW YORK STATE CATHOLIC HEALTH PLAN, INC.
(d/b/a FIDELIS CARE NEW YORK) AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
(In thousands)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments—other
Investments
Premium receivables—net
Pharmacy rebates receivable
Other receivables
Reinsurance receivables
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
RESTRICTED DEPOSITS
INVESTMENTS—Noncurrent
EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS—Net
GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES—Net
TOTAL
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Claims payable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Premiums received in advance
Long-term debt—current portion
Due to third parties
Capital leases—current portion
Total current liabilities
LONG-TERM DEBT
CAPITAL LEASES
Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 10)
NET ASSETS:
Total net assets
TOTAL
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2016

2015

$1,358,759
431,330
697,091
203,708
103,959
8,861
101,169
23,774
2,928,651
366,362
162
57,487
15,850
$3,368,512

$1,101,174
30,000
623,831
241,181
65,258
7,411
72,278
6,070
2,147,203
275,082
165,424
51,969
15,850
$2,655,528

$1,077,035
188,299
14,245
14,286
218,893
41
1,512,799
85,714
—
1,598,513

$ 935,213
142,560
15,178
—
127,036
405
1,220,392
—
47
1,220,439

1,769,999
$3,368,512

1,435,089
$2,655,528

NEW YORK STATE CATHOLIC HEALTH PLAN, INC.
(d/b/a FIDELIS CARE NEW YORK) AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
(In thousands)

REVENUES:
Premium revenues
Other
Total revenues
EXPENSES:
Cost of health care provided
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Total expenses
OTHER INCOME / (EXPENSE):
Investment income and losses—net
Interest expense
Charitable donations and grants
Total other income / (expense)
Excess of revenues over expenses
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2016

2015

$8,407,239
15,774
8,423,013

$6,463,087
7,369
6,470,456

7,684,879
410,144
26,907
8,121,930

5,874,444
340,651
21,166
6,236,261

39,151
(682)
(4,663)
33,806
$ 334,889

(13,432)
(898)
(4,771)
(19,101)
$ 215,094

NEW YORK STATE CATHOLIC HEALTH PLAN, INC.
(d/b/a FIDELIS CARE NEW YORK) AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
(In thousands)

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS—Excess of revenues over expenses
CHANGE IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS:
Contributions
Other
Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets
INCREASE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS—Beginning of year
NET ASSETS—End of year
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2016

2015

$ 334,889

$ 215,094

295
(274)
21
334,910
1,435,089
$1,769,999

166
(199)
(33)
215,061
1,220,028
$1,435,089

NEW YORK STATE CATHOLIC HEALTH PLAN, INC.
(d/b/a FIDELIS CARE NEW YORK) AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
(In thousands)

Change in net assets
Pension plan:
Net gain arising during the period
Other comprehensive earnings
Comprehensive income
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2016

2015

$334,910

$215,061

3,341
3,341
$338,251

2,864
2,864
$217,925

NEW YORK STATE CATHOLIC HEALTH PLAN, INC.
(d/b/a FIDELIS CARE NEW YORK) AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
(In thousands)
2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Net realized and unrealized (gains) losses on trading securities
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments, other than trading
Purchases of investments—trading securities
Proceeds from sale of investments—trading securities
Provision for bad debts
Changes in:
Premium receivables—net
Pharmacy rebates receivable
Other receivables
Reinsurance receivables
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Claims payable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Premiums received in advance
Due to third parties
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of investments and restricted deposits
Purchases of short-term investments—other
Acquisition of equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments of capital lease obligations
Proceeds from long-term debt
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—End of year
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for interest

$

2015

334,910

$ 215,061

26,907
(18,057)
(57)
(1,130,634)
1,075,431
4,662

21,166
29,971
(3)
(809,587)
719,675
2,258

32,811
(38,701)
(1,450)
(28,891)
(17,704)
141,822
32,029
(933)
91,857
504,002

338
(32,383)
(1,312)
(2,798)
(795)
179,320
5,097
8,485
43,163
377,656

(91,280)
(236,011)
(18,715)
(346,006)

(131,343)
—
(33,820)
(165,163)

(411)
100,000
99,589
257,585
1,101,174
$ 1,358,759

(391)
—
(391)
212,102
889,072
$1,101,174

$

682

$

898

Accrual for acquisition of equipment

$

13,710

$

4,809

Capital lease obligations incurred

$

$

—

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NEW YORK STATE CATHOLIC HEALTH PLAN, INC.
(D/B/A FIDELIS CARE NEW YORK) AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
1.

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
The New York State Catholic Health Plan, Inc. (d/b/a Fidelis Care New York) (“Fidelis” or the “Plan”) was incorporated in the State of New York on
May 13, 1993, as a not-for-profit membership corporation. Fidelis, upon obtaining a Special Purpose Certificate of Authority from the State of New
York Commissioner of Health, is licensed to provide or arrange for the provision of comprehensive health services, as defined in Article 44 of the
Public Health Law, on a prepaid full-risk capitation basis, to an enrolled population substantially composed of recipients of the Medical Assistance
Program. Fidelis commenced operations on October 1, 1993, with member eligibility becoming effective November 1, 1993. Fidelis’ historical and
current contractual obligation, per county, excludes benefits for certain family planning and reproductive health services. Upon receipt of the approved
Certificate of Authority, Fidelis executed a contract, effective October 1, 1996, with the City of New York Office of Medicaid Managed Care. This
contract authorized Fidelis to enroll Medicaid beneficiaries in the five boroughs of the City of New York. Fidelis entered into similar contracts with
other counties of the State of New York. Effective October 1, 2005, the New York State Department of Health (NYSDOH) became the sole contracting
authority for all counties, except the City of New York, for Medicaid Managed Care. The NYSDOH subsequently became the contracting authority for
New York City effective August 1, 2011. The contract with the NYSDOH was extended through February 28, 2019. As of December 31, 2016, Fidelis is
authorized to provide services to Medicaid Managed Care members in all 62 counties in the State of New York. In October 1997, Fidelis became a
participant and began enrolling members of the State of New York’s Child Health Plus Program. Fidelis currently provides insurance through this
program in all 62 counties in the State of New York. The Child Health Plus contract was executed in January 2016 and expires on December 31, 2019.
During July 2004, Fidelis became a participant in the Medicare Advantage Program in the State of New York. As of December 31, 2016, Fidelis is
operational in 53 counties.
During May 2006, Fidelis became a participant in the Medicaid Dual Advantage Program in the State of New York. As of December 31, 2016, Fidelis is
operational in 48 counties.
During July 2009, Fidelis became a participant in the Medicaid Advantage Plus Program (MAP) in the State of New York. As of December 31, 2016,
Fidelis is operational in nine counties.
Fidelis became a qualified health plan in the New York Health Benefit Exchange (Health Benefit Exchange) within the NYSDOH that began on
October 1, 2013, providing health coverage to individual members effective January 1, 2014, under the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and
the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (collectively, “Health Care Reform” or “ACA”). As of December 31, 2016, Health Benefit
Exchange is operational in 55 counties.
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During January 2015, Fidelis became a participant in the Fully Integrated Duals Advantage Plan (FIDA) in the State of New York. As of December 31,
2016, Fidelis is operational in six counties.
During October 2015, Fidelis became a participant in the Health and Recovery Plan (HARP) in the State of New York. As of December 31, 2016, Fidelis
is operational in 62 counties.
Effective January 1, 2016, Fidelis became a participant in the Essential Plan (EP), a program offered to qualified individuals who are not eligible for
Medicaid or the Child Health Plus programs. As of December 31, 2016, Fidelis is operational in 58 counties.
On September 30, 2005, Fidelis acquired 100% interest in CenterCare, Inc. (“CenterCare”). Effective August 1, 2008, CenterCare merged with Fidelis,
and pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement, CenterCare surrendered its Certificate of Authority.
On December 30, 2008, Fidelis acquired all assets and liabilities and assumed operations of a former joint venture and established Fidelis Care at Home
(FCAH), a Medicaid long-term care capitated program with the NYSDOH. This program provides an array of home, community, and institutionally
based, long-term care services to persons who are eligible for Medicaid and who have been certified as appropriate candidates for nursing home
placement. Enrollees in FCAH must be at least 18 years old, covered by Medicaid, nursing home-eligible but wish to remain in the community, and
reside in the FCAH service area. As of December 31, 2016, FCAH is operational in all 62 counties in the State of New York.
During July 2004, Fidelis created a wholly owned subsidiary, Salus Administrative Services, Inc. (“Salus”), a New York State corporation formed under
Section 402 of the Business Corporation Law. In January 2008, Salus created a wholly owned subsidiary, Salus IPA, LLC (IPA), a New York State
corporation formed under Section 203 of the Limited Liability Company (LLC) Law. Salus and IPA commenced operations on January 1, 2009,
providing pharmacy benefit management services to Fidelis members and Fidelis employees/dependents.
In February 2016, Fidelis created a wholly owned subsidiary, Rego Park Office Tower, LLC (RPOT), a New York State corporation formed under
Section 203 of the LLC Law. RPOT was organized to operate for not-for-profit purposes consistent with the Real Property Tax Law of the State of New
York. RPOT did not have any operations or activities during 2016, except for the transaction disclosed in Note 17.
The corporate members of the Plan are the eight Diocesan Bishops of the Roman Catholic Dioceses in the State of New York.
2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation—The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Fidelis and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Salus and
RPOT. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Basis of Accounting—The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).
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Use of Estimates—The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accounts affected by significant estimates include
premium receivables, pharmacy rebates receivable, other receivables, reinsurance receivables, ACA reinsurance, risk adjustment and risk corridor
receivables and payables, recoverability of goodwill, claims payable, accrued expenses, amounts due to third parties, premium revenues, and cost of
health care provided. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents—Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and are so near their original maturity dates that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates. Cash
equivalents exclude funds included in restricted deposits.
Short-Term Investments—Other—Short-term investments—other include certificates of deposit with original maturities greater than three months
and remaining maturities are less than one year whose carrying amount approximates fair value.
The Plan revised its statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2016 to present its purchases of short-term investments-other of
$236,011,000 from operating activities to investing activities. Net cash provided by operating activities increased from $267,991,000 to $504,002,000
and the net cash used in investing activities increased from $109,995,000 to $346,006,000 at December 31, 2016 as a result of this revision. The effect
of this revision had no impact on the Plan’s net assets or increase in net assets at December 31, 2016.
Premium Receivables and Revenues—Premium receivables and revenues are recorded in the month for which members are entitled to service.
Premiums represent payment in full for the complete Medicaid, Child Health Plus, Medicare Advantage, Medicaid Dual Advantage, MAP, FCAH,
Health Benefit Exchange, FIDA, HARP and EP with the exception of the standard exclusions and the following additional exclusions: family planning,
childcare, and methadone maintenance treatment program physician/clinic. As a prepaid health services plan, premium revenues are provided by the
State of New York and U.S. government agencies, and therefore, there is no need for an allowance for uncollectible accounts. However, the amounts
due from members under the Health Benefit Exchange, FCAH and EP programs include provisions for uncollectible accounts. The balances in such
provisions for uncollectible accounts approximate $7,471,000 and $2,809,000 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
During 2016 and 2015, changes were made to the Medicaid benefit package whereby New York State transitioned services and populations covered by
fee-for-service Medicaid to managed care plans. Nursing home benefits were carved into Medicaid and FCAH beginning with New York City region
effective February 1, 2015, with additional counties carved in throughout the rest of the year on April 1, 2015, July 1, 2015 and October 1, 2015. In
addition, behavioral health benefits were carved into Medicaid effective October 1, 2015. The State continued its carve-out of the transportation
benefit in 2015. The Plan also received rate changes at various dates during 2016 and 2015, which included premium rates between Aliessa and
non-Aliessa populations. The Aliessa population represents legal immigrants who are eligible for New York’s Medicaid program as a result of a recent
court decision. New York State does not receive federal matching funds for this population. As a result, the NYSDOH adjusted for the Aliessa
population in its Managed Care premiums. For the Plan’s Medicare products, the rates paid to Fidelis by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services (CMS) are adjusted for the member’s age, gender, county of residence, plan-specific bid, disability, income, and health status (risk-adjusted
formula). Under this model, there is a potential for the collection of additional premium. However, the adjustment does not occur in the initial year of
enrollment, but in subsequent periods after the Plan has compiled and submitted medical diagnosis information to CMS. The Plan records revenues and
a receivable from CMS based on the estimate of the members’ risk scores, and may be adjusted in the following year as a result of the annual settlement
with CMS. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Plan recorded prior-year risk score revenue adjustments that increased current-year revenues by
approximately $4,488,000 and $6,448,000, respectively.
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The Plan serves as a plan sponsor offering Medicare Part D prescription drug benefits under a contract with CMS. Certain elements of the payments the
Plan receives, including catastrophic reinsurance subsidy and low-income member cost-sharing subsidies, represent cost reimbursements. In addition,
premium payments received from CMS are subject to risk corridor adjustments whereby variances, which exceed certain thresholds from a target
amount, result in CMS making additional premium payments to the Plan or require the Plan to refund to CMS a portion of previous premiums received.
Risk corridor variances of more than 5% above the target amount will result in CMS making additional payments to plan sponsors, and variances of
more than 5% below the target amount will require plan sponsors to refund CMS. The Medicare Part D receivables as of December 31, 2016 and 2015
were approximately $18,457,000 and $17,985,000, respectively, which are included in premium receivables—net in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. The Medicare Part D payables as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 were approximately $4,967,000 and $1,934,000, respectively, which
are included in due to third parties in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
Premiums Received in Advance—Premiums collected in advance are reported as a liability in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Any
billed premiums that have not been received by the end of the period are included as premium receivables.
Health Care Reform or ACA—The Plan is a participant in the New York Health Benefit Exchange within the NYSDOH established pursuant to Health
Care Reform. Under regulations established by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), HHS pays the Plan a portion of the premium
(“Premium Subsidy”) and/or a portion of the health care costs (“Cost Sharing Subsidy”) for low-income individual members. In addition, HHS
administers certain risk management programs as described below.
Fidelis recognizes monthly premiums received from members and the Premium Subsidy as premium revenue ratably over the contract period. The Cost
Sharing Subsidy offsets health care costs when incurred. A liability is recorded if the Cost Sharing Subsidy is paid in advance or a receivable if incurred
health care costs exceed the Cost Sharing Subsidy received to date. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, liabilities for cost sharing subsidy were
approximately $747,000 and $17,870,000, respectively, which are included in due to third parties in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
Health Care Reform’s Reinsurance, Risk Adjustment and Risk Corridor (the “3Rs”)
Reinsurance—Health Care Reform established a temporary three-year reinsurance program, whereby all issuers of major medical commercial insurance
products and self-insured plan sponsors are required to contribute funding in amounts set by HHS. Funds collected will be utilized to reimburse issuers’
high claims costs incurred for qualified individual members. The expense related to this required funding is reflected as a reduction of premium
revenue. When annual claim costs incurred by the Plan’s qualified individual members exceed a specified attachment point, the Plan is entitled to
certain reimbursements from this program. HHS may change this formula after year-end depending on the monies available to pay reimbursements. The
Plan records a receivable and offsets health care costs to reflect an estimate of these recoveries. The Plan recorded approximately $10,344,000 and
$14,279,000 in ACA reinsurance recoveries in 2016 and 2015, respectively, which are reflected as reductions to cost of healthcare provided in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Included in the 2016 ACA reinsurance recoveries is approximately $5,044,000 in prior year
adjustments based on the final reconciliation and settlement of 2015 reinsurance amounts with HHS (See Note 13). As of December 31, 2016 and 2015,
ACA reinsurance receivables were approximately $6,818,000 and $8,820,000, respectively, which are included in reinsurance receivables in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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Risk Adjustment—Health Care Reform established a permanent risk adjustment program to transfer funds from qualified individual and small group
insurance plans with below average risk scores to those respective plans with above average risk scores. Based on the risk of Fidelis’ qualified plan
members relative to the average risk of members of other qualified plans in comparable markets, Fidelis estimates the ultimate risk adjustment
receivable or payable and reflects the pro-rata year-to-date impact as an adjustment to its premium revenue. The Plan recorded approximately
$51,941,000 and $57,907,000 in premium adjustment payables in 2016 and 2015, respectively, which are included in premium revenues in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations. Included in the 2016 premium adjustment payable is approximately $18,072,000 in prior year
adjustments based on the final reconciliation and settlement of 2015 risk adjustment amounts with HHS (See Note 13). As of December 31, 2016 and
2015, risk adjustment payables were approximately $69,994,000 and $74,692,000, respectively, which are included in due to third parties in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
Risk Corridor—Health Care Reform established a temporary three-year risk sharing program for qualified individual and small group insurance plans.
Under this program the Plan makes (or receives) a payment to (or from) HHS based on the ratio of allowable costs to target costs (as defined by Health
Care Reform). The Plan records a risk corridor receivable or payable as an adjustment to premium revenue on a pro-rata year-to-date basis based on the
estimate of the ultimate risk sharing amount. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Plan has no risk corridor payables. However, in 2015, the Plan has
paid approximately $3,500,000 in 2014 risk corridor adjustments upon final reconciliation and settlement with HHS (See Note 13).
The Plan will perform a final reconciliation and settlement with HHS of the 2016 3Rs and the 2015 Cost Sharing Subsidy during 2017. As permitted by
HHS, in 2015, the Plan recognized approximately $10,261,000 in deferred rebate liability representing estimated rebates due to its members for the
2014 calendar year. The Plan does not anticipate any rebate liability due to its members for calendar year 2016.
Pharmacy Rebates Receivable—The Plan has an arrangement with a Pharmacy Benefit Management (PBM) company to administer pharmaceutical
benefits to the Plan’s members. The Plan accrues pharmacy rebates monthly based on the terms of the applicable contracts, historical billing and
payment data, and other variables. Pharmacy rebates receivable are recorded as a reduction of health care costs. Pharmacy rebates are billed by the PBM
to the pharmaceutical manufacturers within two months of the completion of the quarter depending on the contractual terms.
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Other Receivables—Other receivables include accrued interest receivable, insurance recoveries and other miscellaneous amounts due to the Plan.
Reinsurance Other Than ACA Reinsurance—Reinsurance premiums are reported in health care costs and reinsurance recoveries are deducted from
health care costs (See Note 14).
Investments—Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair value and investments in debt securities are reported at fair value in the
consolidated balance sheets.
The Plan’s investment portfolio is designated as trading based on the Plan’s investment strategy and investment philosophies. Investment managers
may execute purchases and sales of investments in accordance with the Plan’s investment policy. All realized and unrealized gains and losses on
trading security investments have been recognized in investment income and losses—net in the consolidated statements of operations.
Investment income or loss includes realized gains and losses on investments, interest, dividends, and unrealized gains and losses on investments
classified as trading. Realized gains and losses are determined using the first-in, first-out method. Investments recognized as current assets are available
to support current operations. Investment income is recorded when earned.
The Plan invests in a commingled mutual fund. Fair value is determined by the fund manager. Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, the
values determined by the investment managers may differ from the values that would have been used had a ready market for these investments existed.
Changes in fair value are included in investment income and losses—net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. As of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the fair value of investment held in the commingled mutual fund was approximately $46,487,000 and $39,577,000,
respectively.
Restricted Deposits—Restricted deposits relate to amounts held in escrow in accordance with regulatory requirements as discussed in Note 16.
Investments Noncurrent—Investments—Noncurrent include certificates of deposit with original maturities greater than three months and remaining
maturities that are more than one year whose carrying amount approximates fair value.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets—The Plan reviews the carrying value of its long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the historical cost-carrying value of an asset may no longer be appropriate. The Plan assesses recoverability of the carrying value of the asset by
estimating the future net cash flows expected to result from the asset, including eventual disposition. If the future net cash flows are less than the
carrying value of the asset, an impairment loss is recorded equal to the difference between the asset’s carrying value and fair value. There was no
impairment loss recorded in 2016 or 2015.
Equipment and Leasehold Improvements—Equipment and leasehold improvements are recorded at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets.
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the term of the related lease or the life of the improvement. Costs incurred relating to major
additions and improvements are capitalized and amortized over the useful life of the related project. The Plan commences the recognition of
depreciation expense on these projects once the project is completed.
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The Plan capitalizes the costs for acquiring, developing, and testing software to meet the Plan’s internal needs. Capitalization of costs associated with
developing or obtaining computer software for internal use commences when the project is completed and it is probable the project will be used to
perform the function intended. Capitalized costs include (1) external direct cost of materials and services consumed in developing or obtaining
internal-use software and (2) payroll and payroll-related costs for employees who are directly associated with and devote time to the internal-use
software project. Capitalization of such costs cease no later than the point at which the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended use.
Internal-use software costs are amortized once the software is placed in service using the straight-line method over periods ranging from three to five
years.
Goodwill and Intangible Assets—The Plan acquired CenterCare on September 30, 2005. As a result of that acquisition, goodwill and identifiable
intangible assets were recognized. Impairment testing of goodwill and identifiable intangible assets will be done whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of these assets might not be recoverable, or at least annually. As of January 1, 2016 and 2015, the
Plan performed a qualitative fair value assessment as part of its annual impairment test and determined these assets were not impaired. The net carrying
value of goodwill and identifiable intangible assets of the Plan as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, is approximately $15,850,000 for both years.
There was no amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2016. Amortization expense was $172,500 for the year ended December 31, 2015.
Claims Payable—Claims payable consists of amounts of payments to be made on individual claims that have been reported to the Plan, as well as
estimates of claims incurred that have not yet been reported as of the consolidated balance sheet dates. Components of claims payable are estimated,
with the assistance of an external actuary, using various statistical methods that use both historical financial and operating data. Management estimates
additional components of claims payable using historical information and other operating data.
Claims payable also includes amounts payable for a quality incentive program (QIP) whereby certain of the Plan’s providers may qualify for additional
remuneration by achieving certain quality score thresholds based on the NYSDOH Quality Assurance Reporting Requirements. Management estimates
a liability for QIP payments based on historical information and estimates of the providers who will achieve the required thresholds. As of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Plan recorded approximately $60,365,000 and $54,837,000, respectively, for payments under the QIP that
management estimates the Plan will pay.
The Plan has a process to review claims from providers that were previously denied or pended for administrative reasons. At December 31, 2016 and
2015, the Plan recorded approximately $13,238,000 and $7,127,000, respectively, for estimates pertaining to such claims. These amounts are
considered in the determination of the overall claims payable.
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Management believes that the liability for claims payable is adequate to satisfy the ultimate claim liabilities. However, there is at least a possibility
that the estimates will change by a material amount in the near term since claims payable recorded in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
was determined using a range of estimated amounts based on information available to management. The estimates for claims payable are continually
reviewed and adjusted as necessary as experience develops or new information becomes known. Such adjustments are included in current operations.
Due to Third Parties—Due to third parties primarily consists of Health Care Reform Act of 2000 surcharges, adjustments to the quality incentive and
other components of the Medicaid premium rates, estimated amounts pertaining to potential premium overpayments, unrecouped reinsurance
premiums, Medicare risk payables, and liabilities associated with the 3Rs.
Other Income / (Expense)—The Plan has significant financial investments, which are used to finance operations. All investment gains and losses
(realized gains and losses on investments, interest, dividends, and unrealized gains and losses on investments classified as trading and other than
trading) and expenses and losses, including interest expense, are reported as other income / (expense). Charitable donations and grants are also reported
in other income / (expense).
Contributions and Donor-Restricted Gifts—Gifts are reported as temporarily restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit
the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statements of operations as other revenues. In
the absence of donor specifications that income and gains on donated funds are restricted, such income and gains are reported as unrestricted income.
Cost of Health Care Provided—Cost of health care provided consists primarily of claims paid, claims in process, claims pending to physicians,
hospitals, and other health care providers, and an estimate of amounts incurred but not yet reported (IBNR). The Plan develops estimates for IBNR
claims using an actuarial process that is consistently applied. The actuarial models consider factors such as time from date of service to claim receipt,
provider contract rate changes, medical utilization, and other medical cost trends. Given the inherent variability of such estimates, the actual liability
could differ significantly from the amounts provided.
The Plan reimburses providers on a capitation, fee-for-service, or contractual basis. The cost of health care services provided is accrued in the period in
which the care is provided to a member based, in part, on estimates, including an accrual for medical services provided but not reported to the Plan. In
addition, the Plan provides remuneration to providers based on its QIP.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments—The Plan’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, investments, restricted deposits, accounts
receivable, and accounts payable. Unless otherwise specified, the carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximate their fair value (see
Note 5).
Advertising Costs—Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs charged to operations were approximately $17,205,000 and
$14,576,000 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Charitable Donations and Grants—Charitable donations and grants include unrestricted support for local organizations and projects consistent with
the Plan’s mission of providing services to those with special needs, the poor, and underserved.
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Tax Status—Effective October 24, 1997, Fidelis qualified as a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and is exempt from federal income taxes. In July 2004, Salus was formed as a for-profit corporation for which tax provisions are provided.
Amounts provided for income taxes have been reported as operating expenses. In February 2016, RPOT was formed as a corporation under Section 203
of the LLC Law. RPOT is treated as a disregarded entity for tax purposes.
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements and Update—In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued an update on
leases, ASU 2016-02. The ASU will require organizations that lease assets—referred to as “lessees”—to recognize on the balance sheet the assets and
liabilities for the rights and obligations created by those leases. The ASU on leases will take effect for public companies for fiscal years, and interim
periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2018. For all other organizations, the ASU on leases will take effect for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2019, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. Early application will be permitted
for all organizations. The Plan is currently evaluating the effect of the new leases accounting guidance.
In May 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-07—Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820). The amendments in this ASU remove the requirement to
categorize within the fair value hierarchy all investments for which fair value is measured using the net asset value per share practical expedient. The
amendments also remove the requirement to make certain disclosures for all investments that are eligible to be measured at fair value using the net
asset value per share practical expedient. This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016. The amendments should be
retrospectively applied to all periods presented and earlier adoption is permitted. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the
Plan’s consolidated statement of financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606).” ASU 2014-09 will supersede existing
revenue recognition standards with a single model unless those contracts are within the scope of other standards (e.g., an insurance entity’s insurance
contracts). The revenue recognition principle in ASU 2014-09 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In addition,
new and enhanced disclosures will be required. Companies can adopt the new standard using either the full retrospective approach, a modified
retrospective approach with practical expedients, or a cumulative effect upon adoption approach. In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-14,
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers: Deferral of the Effective Date,” (“ASU No. 2015-14”) which deferred the effective date of ASU No. 2014-09
to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim reporting periods within annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2019. Early application is permitted as of annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. ASU No. 2015-14 allows for both
retrospective and modified retrospective methods of adoption of ASU No. 2014-09. The Plan is currently evaluating the effect of the new revenue
recognition guidance.
In May 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-09, Financial Services—Insurance (Topic 944): Disclosures about Short-Duration Contracts, which
expands the disclosure requirements for insurance companies that issue short-duration contracts. The new standard will increase the level of disclosure
around the Plan’s claims payable liability to include the following: claims development by year; claim frequency; a rollforward of the claims payable
liability; and a description of methods and assumptions used for determining the liability. It is effective for annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2016 and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The Plan is currently evaluating the effect of this
guidance.
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The Plan has also determined that there have been no other recently issued, but not yet adopted, accounting standards that will have a material impact
on its consolidated financial statements.
3.

PREMIUM REVENUE
Premium revenue is derived substantially from the Medicaid and Medicare Advantage programs under capitation arrangements with the State of New
York and U.S. government agencies, which are adjusted annually upon the issuance of new rates. Laws and regulations governing federal and state
health care programs are complex and subject to interpretation for which noncompliance includes fines, penalties, and exclusion from these programs.
The Plan believes that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any pending or threatened investigations
involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. Additionally, any future changes in Medicaid and Medicare Advantage funding could have a material
impact on the Plan.
Effective January 1, 2014, the Plan began providing health coverage to individual members through the New York Health Benefit Exchange within the
NYSDOH under the provisions of the Health Care Reform. Regulations and interpretive guidance on many provisions of the Health Care Reform Law
have been issued to date by various regulatory bodies, of which certain provisions of the law require additional guidance and clarification in the form
of regulations and interpretations. The Plan believes that it is in compliance with the applicable Health Care Reform laws and regulations that would
have a material impact on the operations and financial results of the Plan.
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4.

INVESTMENTS AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS
The composition of investments and restricted deposits as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, is as follows (in thousands):
2016

2015

Short-term investments—other

$431,330

$ 30,000

Investments:
Debt securities:
U.S. government and agency obligations
U.S. agency mortgage-backed securities
State and municipal obligations
Corporate obligations
Non-U.S. agency mortgage-backed securities
Non-U.S. agency asset-backed securities
Total debt securities
Equity securities
Mutual funds
Alternative investments
Total investments

$ 54,615
31,636
2,048
87,269
13,385
20,786
209,739
156,955
283,910
46,487
$697,091

$ 50,104
28,235
2,191
80,431
16,322
25,694
202,977
129,414
251,863
39,577
$623,831

Restricted deposits:
Certificates of deposit
Total restricted deposits

$366,362
$366,362

$275,082
$275,082

Investments—noncurrent

$

$165,424

162

Total restricted deposits are funds set aside to satisfy the statutorily designated escrow deposit requirements as described in Note 16.
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Investment income and losses from investments, restricted deposits, short-term investments—other, investments—noncurrent and cash equivalents as
of December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows (in thousands):

Investment income and losses—net:
Interest and dividend income
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on trading securities
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments, other than trading
Total

5.

2016

2015

$21,037
18,057
57
$39,151

$ 16,536
(29,971)
3
$(13,432)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market data obtained from sources
independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own
assumption about market participant assumptions (unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy). The fair value hierarchy is as
follows:
Level 1—Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets in active markets. Active markets are those in which transactions for the asset or liability occur
with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
Level 2—Other observable inputs, either directly or indirectly, including:
•

Quoted prices for similar assets in active markets

•

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in nonactive markets (few transactions, limited information, noncurrent prices, high variability over
time, etc.)

•

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset (interest rates, yield curves, volatilities, default rates, etc.)

•

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by other observable market data

Level 3—Unobservable inputs that cannot be corroborated by observable market data.
In instances in which the inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the fair value measurement has been
determined based on the lowest-level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The Plan’s assessment of the significance of
a particular item to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, including the consideration of inputs specific to the asset and/or
liability.
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2, and 3 during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.
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The Plan measures its financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. The composition of financial assets measured at fair value as of
December 31, 2016, is as follows (in thousands):
Quoted
Prices
in Active
Markets
(Level 1)

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments—other
Restricted deposits—certificates of deposit
Investments:
Debt securities:
U.S. government and agency obligations
U.S. agency mortgage-backed securities
State and municipal obligations
Corporate obligations
Non-U.S. agency mortgage-backed securities
Non-U.S. agency asset-backed securities
Total debt securities
Equity securities
Mutual funds
Alternative investments
Total investments
Investments—noncurrent—other
Total investments—noncurrent
Total assets at fair value

Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

$1,358,759
431,330
366,362

$

$

54,615
—
—
—
—
—
54,615
156,955
283,910
—
495,480
—
—
$2,651,931

—
31,636
2,048
87,269
13,385
20,786
155,124
—
—
—
155,124
162
162
$ 155,286

—
—
—

$

Other

—
—
—

$

—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
46,487
46,487
—
—
$46,487

Total Fair
Value

$1,358,759
431,330
366,362

54,615
31,636
2,048
87,269
13,385
20,786
209,739
156,955
283,910
46,487
697,091
162
162
$2,853,704

The amounts categorized as alternative investments have been measured at fair value using the net asset value per share. These investments are not
classified within the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in the table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy
to the amounts presented in the balance sheet.
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The Plan measures its financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. The composition of financial assets measured at fair value as of
December 31, 2015, is as follows (in thousands):
Quoted
Prices
in Active
Markets
(Level 1)

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments—other
Restricted deposits—certificates of deposit
Investments:
Debt securities:
U.S. government and agency obligations
U.S. agency mortgage-backed securities
State and municipal obligations
Corporate obligations
Non-U.S. agency mortgage-backed securities
Non-U.S. agency asset-backed securities
Total debt securities
Equity securities
Mutual funds
Alternative investments
Total investments
Investments—noncurrent:
Certificates of deposit
Other
Total investments—noncurrent
Total assets at fair value

$1,101,174
30,000
275,082
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Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

$

$

—
—
—

—
—
—

Other

$

—
—
—

Total Fair
Value

$1,101,174
30,000
275,082

50,104
—
—
—
—
—
50,104
129,414
251,863
—
431,381

—
28,235
2,191
80,431
16,322
25,694
152,873
—
—
—
152,873

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
39,577
39,577

50,104
28,235
2,191
80,431
16,322
25,694
202,977
129,414
251,863
39,577
623,831

165,256
—
165,256
$2,002,893

—
168
168
$ 153,041

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
$39,577

165,256
168
165,424
$2,195,511

$

The amounts categorized as alternative investments have been measured at fair value using the net asset value per share. These investments are not
classified within the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in the table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy
to the amounts presented in the balance sheet.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument:
Cash and Cash Equivalents—The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value as maturities are in the near future and/or
include money market funds and short-term, highly liquid investments, that are based on quoted prices and actively traded. Cash and cash equivalents
are classified as Level 1.
Short-Term Investments—Other—The carrying value of short-term investments—other approximates fair value as maturities are in the near future.
Short-term investments—other are classified as Level 1.
Investments—Noncurrent—Investments—noncurrent include certificates of deposit that are due in excess of one year whose carrying
value approximates fair value. Investments in certificates of deposit due in excess of one year are classified as Level 1. All other investments are
classified as Level 2.
Debt Securities—The estimated fair values of debt securities are based on quoted market prices and/or other market data for the same or comparable
instruments and transactions in establishing the prices. Level 1 debt securities are comprised primarily of U.S. government and agency obligations. Fair
values of debt securities that do not trade on a regular basis in active markets are classified as Level 2.
Equity Securities—Fair value estimates for publicly traded equity securities are based on quoted market prices and/or other market data for the same or
comparable instruments and transactions in establishing the prices. Fair values of publicly traded equity securities are classified as Level 1.
Mutual Funds—Fair value estimates for shares of registered investment companies are based on quoted market prices that represent the net asset value
(NAV) of shares held. Fair values of mutual funds are classified as Level 1 based upon publicly available NAV data.
Alternative Investments (Equity Method)—The estimated fair values of commingled funds (alternative investments) are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting for which no quoted market prices are readily available. The estimated fair value for these types of investments are determined
based upon information provided by the fund managers. Such information is based on the pro rata interest in the NAV of the underlying investments,
which approximates fair value.
- 22 -

Included in the Plan’s investment portfolio are investments in certain funds that report fair value using a calculated NAV. The attributes relating to the
nature and risk of such investments as of December 31, 2016, are as follows (in thousands):

Investment

Fair Value

Colchester Funds*

$ 46,487

Other
Underfunded Redemption Redemption
Commitment Frequency Restrictions

None

Monthly

None

Redemption
Notice Period

Written 10 business days prior

*

The fair values of the investments have been estimated using the NAV of the investment. The objective of the fund is to obtain income-oriented returns
from a globally diversified portfolio of primarily debt and debt-like securities.

6.

EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS
Equipment and leasehold improvements as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, consist of the following (in thousands):

Furniture and fixtures
Equipment
Computers and computer software
Leasehold improvements
Equipment under capital lease obligations
Automobiles
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Work in progress
Total

2016

2015

$ 12,912
7,398
125,441
21,237
6,526
1,247
174,761
(118,697)
1,423
$ 57,487

$ 10,436
6,033
99,857
16,943
6,526
1,147
140,942
(92,485)
3,512
$ 51,969

Depreciable
Life

3–10 years
3–10 years
3–8 years
1–20 years
3 years

Work in progress is comprised of continuing technology and infrastructure projects to support the Plan’s strategic initiatives. This includes system
enhancements for the Plan’s new lines of businesses.
Depreciation and amortization expense pertaining to equipment and leasehold improvements for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, was
approximately $26,826,000 and $20,913,000, respectively. Amortization expense for equipment under capital lease obligations for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, was approximately $81,000 and $81,000, respectively. Accumulated amortization on equipment under capital lease at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, was approximately $6,478,000 and $6,397,000, respectively.
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7.

GOODWILL
The following table summarizes the change in the Plan’s goodwill balance during 2016 (in thousands):
Balance—January 1, 2016
Acquisitons
Balance—December 31, 2016

$15,850
—
$15,850

Goodwill is reviewed annually for impairment on December 31, or more frequently upon the occurrence of trigger events. Based on the Plan’s
assessment, no goodwill impairment was recorded for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.
8.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands):
2016

Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses

9.

$ 16,277
172,022
$188,299

2015

$

9,488
133,072
$142,560

LONG-TERM DEBT
On December 12, 2016, Fidelis entered into Term Loan Agreements (TLAs) with three leading financial institutions, each as a “lender” and collectively
the “lenders”. The lenders provided a seven-year unsecured term loan facility in the aggregate principal amount of $100,000,000 payable in equal
quarterly installments. Proceeds from the TLAs were used by Fidelis for strategic and other business purposes.
The interest rate under the TLAs is variable and is determined at Fidelis’ option as: (i) the one, two, three or six month Adjusted London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR), plus the lender’s Applicable Margin or (ii) the Prime Rate plus the lender’s Applicable Margin. The Applicable Margin can
range from 0.75% to 1.80% based upon Fidelis’ deposit levels with the lenders. The weighted average interest rate on the TLAs during 2016 was
1.49%.
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The future maturities of long-term debt consist of the following (in thousands):
Years Ending December 31
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter

$ 14,286
14,286
14,286
14,286
14,286
28,570
100,000
(14,286)
$ 85,714

Less current portion
Total long-term debt

The Plan had unsecured lines of credit in the amounts of $180,000,000 and $250,000,000 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, with an
interest rate established by the lending institutions and agreed to by the Plan. The lines of credit expire during 2017, which the Plan expects to renew.
At December 31, 2016 and 2015, no amounts were outstanding under the lines of credit. The provisions of the lines of credit require the Plan to
maintain specified net worth, liquidity and other conditions. At December 31, 2016, all covenant requirements associated with the unsecured lines of
credit were met.
10.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases—The Plan is the lessee of administrative facilities and equipment under noncancelable operating leases. All facility leases have early
termination clauses. Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 was approximately $10,309,000 and $8,879,000, respectfully.
Future annual aggregate minimum rentals under operating leases as of December 31, 2016 are as follows (in thousands):
Years Ending December 31
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter
Total

$11,152
11,082
10,683
10,283
5,773
43,630
$92,603

Other Matters—The Plan is involved in litigation and claims disputes with providers arising in the normal course of business. The ultimate outcome
of these cases cannot be predicted at this time. Management does not believe that the ultimate outcome of these matters will have a materially adverse
effect on the financial position of the Plan.
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The Plan is subject to ongoing examinations and oversight by the State of New York with respect to financial condition, market conduct and other
regulatory matters. The Plan is not aware of any existing or pending investigations regarding noncompliance with applicable laws and regulations that
would have a material impact on the operations of the Plan.
11.

POST RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
The Plan sponsors a defined contribution plan for eligible employees and a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for certain specified employees,
which was approved by the Fidelis Board of Directors. The amount of net expense related to these plans that was recognized during the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015 was approximately $10,764,000 and $8,435,000, respectively. The amount recognized is dependent on the number of
participants in the plans.

12.

CLAIMS PAYABLE
Claims payable includes reserves for IBNR claims, claims received but not processed, and other liabilities incurred in connection with the cost of
health care provided, provider incentives, pharmacy costs, and other reserves in connection with health care costs.
The following table provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances for claims payable as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 (in
thousands):
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2016

Claims payable—beginning of year
Medical Expenses
Current year
Prior years
Total Medical Expenses
Paid Claims
Current year
Prior years
Total Paid Claims
Reinsurance Receivable
NYS surcharges and other assessments
Claims payable—end of year

$

$

935,213

2015

$

755,893

7,857,246
(172,367)
7,684,879

5,981,054
(106,610)
5,874,444

(6,959,590)
(618,398)
(7,577,988)
28,891
6,040
1,077,035

(5,101,536)
(599,284)
(5,700,820)
2,798
2,898
$
935,213

Net Incurred Medical Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31,
2016
2015

Year

2015
2016
Total

$

5,808,687
7,857,246
$ 13,665,933

$

5,981,054

Net Cumulative Medical Payments
For the Year Ended December 31,
2016
2015

Year

2015
2016
Total

$

(5,793,415)
(6,832,880)
$ (12,626,295)

Net Remaining Outstanding Payable prior to 2015
Reinsurance receivable
NYS surcharges and other assessments
Total Claims Payable

$
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2,466
28,891
6,040
1,077,035

$ (5,101,536)

The following table shows the Plan’s breakdown in health care provided costs (in thousands):

Incurred claims
Capitation and contractual arrangements
Pharmacy costs
New York State surcharges and other assessments
Other benefit costs (1)
Cost of health care provided
(1)

13.

2016

2015

$5,768,238
101,180
1,593,819
201,802
19,840
$7,684,879

$4,391,217
99,177
1,205,664
145,206
33,180
$5,874,444

Other benefit costs include amounts related to incentives, reinsurance premiums, and other.

HEALTH CARE REFORM’S 3RS
The following table provides details of the Health Care Reform’s 3Rs as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands):
2016

ACA Permanent Risk Adjustment Program
Risk adjustment user fees payable
Premium adjustments payable included in due to third parties
Reported as reduction to premium revenues
Reported in expenses as ACA risk adjustment user fees
ACA Transitional Reinsurance Program
Amounts recoverable for claims paid
Amounts recoverable for claims unpaid
Liabilities for contributions payable included in due to third parties—not reported as ceded
premium
Ceded reinsurance premiums payable included in due to third parties
Ceded reinsurance premiums reported as reduction to premium revenues
Reinsurance recoverable due to payments or expected payments
ACA reinsurance contributions—not reported as ceded premium
ACA Risk Corridor Program
Accrued retrospective premium due from ACA risk corridors
Effect of risk corridors on net premium income (paid)

$

98
69,994
51,941
98

2015

$

197
74,692
57,907
197

$10,344
—

$13,792
487

300
1,200
1,200
10,344
300

671
2,013
2,013
14,279
671

$

—
—

$

—
3,500

The Plan has no risk corridor adjustment since the total Health Benefit Exchange medical costs and premium revenue for 2016 and 2015 are
anticipated to fall within a range where there is neither a receivable nor payable.
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The following table provides a roll forward of the 2015 ACA risk-sharing provisions specified asset and liability balance (in thousands):

Accrued During
the Prior Year
on Business Written
Before December 31
of the Prior Year
1
2
Receivable (Payable)
a. Permanent ACA Risk Adjustment
Program
1. Premium Adjustment Receivable $
2. Premium Adjustment (Payable)
3. Subtotal ACA Permanent Risk
Adjustment Program
b. Transitional ACA Reinsurance
Program
1. Amounts recoverable for claims
paid
2. Amounts recoverable for claims
unpaid (contra liability)
3. Amounts receivable relating to
uninsured plans
4. Liabilities for contributions
payable due to ACA Reinsurance
—not reported as ceded premium
5. Ceded reinsurance premiums
payable
6. Liability for amounts held under
uninsured plans
7. Subtotal ACA Transitional
Reinsurance Program
c. Temporary ACA Risk Corridors
Program
1. Accrued retrospective premium
2. Reserve for rate credits or policy
experience rating refunds
3. Subtotal ACA Risk Corridors
Program
d. Total for ACA Risk-Sharing Provisions $

Received or Paid as of
the Current Year on
Business Written Before
December 31 of the
Prior Year
3
4
Receivable (Payable)

34 $
—
$
—
(74,727)
34

(74,727)

Differences
Prior Year Prior Year
Accrued
Accrued
Less
Less
Payments
Payments
(Col 1-3)
(Col 2-4)
5
6
Receivable (Payable)

15 $
—
$
—
(56,655)
15

(56,655)

19
—
19

$

Unsettled Balances
as of the Reporting Date
Cumulative Cumulative
Adjustments
Balance
Balance
To Prior
To Prior
from Prior from Prior
Year
Year
Years
Years
Balances
Balances
(Col 1-3+7) (Col 2-4+8)
7
8
9
10
11
Receivable (Payable) Ref Receivable
(Payable)

—
$
(18,072)

—
—

(18,072)

—

$

—
18,072

$
A

18,072

—
—

19

—

1,517

—

8,332

—

11,858

—

(3,526)

—

5,043

—

488

—

488

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

(2,684)

—

(2,684)

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

8,820

(2,684)

(2,684)

(3,526)

—

5,043

—

1,517

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—
—
8,854 $ (77,411) $

12,346

—
—
12,361 $ (59,339) $

—
—
(3,507) $ (18,072) $

B

19 $
—

—
—
5,043 $ 18,072

$

—
1,536 $

—
—

Explanation of Adjustments

14.

A

Adjustment for the 2015 Metal Plans Pool final payable of approximately $56,655,000 from CMS’ June 30, 2016 notice.

B

Adjustment for the 2015 final reinsurance receivable of approximately $13,863,000 from CMS’ June 30, 2016 notice.

REINSURANCE OTHER THAN ACA REINSURANCE
The Plan has reinsurance agreements with insurance companies and the NYSDOH to limit its losses on individual claims for hospital medical services.
The reinsurance agreements do not relieve the Plan from its obligations to enrollees. Under the terms of the agreements, the Plan will be reimbursed up
to 90% of the cost of eligible hospital medical services, up to an annual maximum benefit per covered member of $2,000,000. Reinsurance premiums
of approximately $51,615,000 and $44,711,000 are included in health care costs for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Approximately $88,062,000 and $68,314,000 in reinsurance recoveries are deducted from health care costs in 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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15.

CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK
At December 31, 2016, the Plan had cash balances in financial institutions that exceed federal depository insurance limits. Management believes that
the credit risk related to these deposits is minimal.
The Plan receives substantially all of its premium revenue through various programs of the State of New York and U.S. government agencies. These
programs are based on complex laws and regulations. Noncompliance with such laws and regulations could result in fines, penalties, and exclusion
from such programs.
Premium revenue from third-party payers, other payers, and members for 2016 and 2015, is as follows:

Medicaid (including long-term care and HARP)
Health Benefit Exchange and EP
Medicare
Child Health Plus
Total

16.

2016

2015

79%
10
9
2
100%

87%
3
8
2
100%

REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
The Plan is required by the NYSDOH to deposit, in the form of an escrow deposit account, an amount equal to the greater of 5% of the current year’s
estimated expenditures for health care services or $100,000, for the protection of enrollees. The Plan has until March 31 of the current year to
determine the required balance and fund its escrow deposit account. The required balance per the stipulations discussed above amounted to
approximately $366,362,000 and $275,082,000 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The escrow deposit account to fund this requirement is
included in restricted deposits in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
The NYSDOH’s minimum contingent reserve requirement applicable to premium income generated from the Medicaid program for plans such as
Fidelis is 12.5%. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the amount of the contingent reserve fund was approximately $956,306,000 and $771,002,000,
respectively, which is included in net assets. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Plan maintained the minimum contingent reserve requirement of 5%
for FCAH, MAP and FIDA, 7.25% for EP, and 12.5% for the rest of the Plan.

17.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On March 29, 2016, RPOT entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement with Queens Office Tower Limited Partnership, (the “Seller”) whereby RPOT
agreed to acquire the building located at 95-25 Queens Boulevard, Rego Park, New York (“Queens Tower”) owned by the Seller for approximately
$139,875,000. The agreement stipulated that approximately $13,987,000 be placed in escrow, representing the down payment for the purchase price of
Queens Tower. The balance due to the Seller will be paid at closing, which will occur on March 28, 2017. The escrow payment is recorded as part of
prepaid expenses and other current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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On September 12, 2017, Fidelis entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (hereinafter, the “APA”) with Centene Corporation, a Delaware corporation
(“Centene”). Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the APA, substantially all of Fidelis’ insurance operations, assets and liabilities
will be sold to and assumed by Centene. Following the closing of the transaction, Fidelis will be divested of its insurance operations, but will remain
an independent 501(c)(3) tax exempt organization.
The corporate members of Fidelis are the eight Diocesan Bishops of the Roman Catholic Dioceses in the State of New York. At the closing of the
transactions contemplated by the APA, Fidelis will receive consideration, subject to certain adjustments, consisting of $3,250,000,000 in cash and, at
the option of Centene, additional cash or shares of Centene’s common stock valued at $500,000,000, of which $375,000,000 will be placed in escrow
to secure any potential indemnification obligations of Fidelis to Centene. Fidelis will retain certain cash and investment assets as well as its Rego Park
Office Building.
The closing of the transactions contemplated by the APA is subject to the satisfaction or waiver of customary closing conditions, including, without
limitation, certain approval, notice or similar requirements with applicable regulatory authorities. On September 12, 2017, the Board of Directors and
Members of Fidelis approved the execution of the APA and the transactions contemplated thereunder.
The completion of the transactions contemplated by the APA is not conditioned on receipt of financing by Centene. The APA is expected to close in
early 2018, subject to the receipt of required regulatory approvals and satisfaction or waiver of other closing conditions.
The Plan has evaluated subsequent events through September 14, 2017, which is the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be
issued.
******
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NEW YORK STATE CATHOLIC HEALTH PLAN, INC.
(d/b/a FIDELIS CARE NEW YORK) AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND DECEMBER 31, 2016 (UNAUDITED)
(In thousands)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments—other
Investments
Premium receivables—net
Pharmacy rebates receivable
Other receivables
Reinsurance receivables
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
RESTRICTED DEPOSITS
INVESTMENTS—Noncurrent
EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS—Net
GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES—Net
TOTAL
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Claims payable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Premiums received in advance
Long-term debt—current portion
Due to third parties
Capital leases—current portion
Total current liabilities
LONG-TERM DEBT
Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 9)
NET ASSETS—Total net assets
TOTAL
See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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September 30,
2017

December 31,
2016

$ 1,721,352
549,387
766,176
193,734
96,687
12,308
87,498
16,627
3,443,769
449,447
182
197,253
15,850
$ 4,106,501

$ 1,358,759
431,330
697,091
203,708
103,959
8,861
101,169
23,774
2,928,651
366,362
162
57,487
15,850
$ 3,368,512

$ 1,324,665
159,043
106,461
14,286
288,229
—
1,892,684
75,000
1,967,684

$ 1,077,035
188,299
14,245
14,286
218,893
41
1,512,799
85,714
1,598,513

2,138,817
$ 4,106,501

1,769,999
$ 3,368,512

NEW YORK STATE CATHOLIC HEALTH PLAN, INC.
(d/b/a FIDELIS CARE NEW YORK) AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016 (UNAUDITED)
(In thousands)

REVENUES:
Premium revenues
Other
Total revenues
EXPENSES:
Cost of health care provided
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Total expenses
OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSE):
Investment income and losses—net
Interest expense
Charitable donations and grants
Total other income/(expense)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES

September 30,
2017

September 30,
2016

$ 7,243,513
19,671
7,263,184

$ 5,976,181
7,417
5,983,598

6,546,481
388,402
24,783
6,959,666

5,572,880
294,455
20,036
5,887,371

$

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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71,020
(1,795)
(3,750)
65,475
368,993

$

40,428
(442)
(3,750)
36,236
132,463

NEW YORK STATE CATHOLIC HEALTH PLAN, INC.
(d/b/a FIDELIS CARE NEW YORK) AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016 (UNAUDITED)
(In thousands)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
PENSION PLAN:
Net gain arising during the period
Other comprehensive income
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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September 30,
2017

September 30,
2016

$

368,818

$

132,575

$

3,300
3,300
372,118

$

2,700
2,700
135,275

NEW YORK STATE CATHOLIC HEALTH PLAN, INC.
(d/b/a FIDELIS CARE NEW YORK) AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016 (UNAUDITED)
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Net realized and unrealized (gains) losses on trading securities
Net realized and unrealized losses (gains) on investments, other than trading
Purchases of investments—trading securities
Proceeds from sale of investments—trading securities
Provision for bad debts
Changes in:
Premium receivables
Pharmacy rebates receivable
Other receivables
Reinsurance receivables
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Claims payable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Premiums received in advance
Due to third parties
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of investments and restricted deposits
Purchases of short-term investments—other
Acquisition of land, building and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments of notes payable
Payments of capital lease obligations
Net cash used in financing activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—End of period
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the period for interest
Accrual for acquisition of equipment
See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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September 30,
2017

September 30,
2016

$

$

368,818

132,575

24,783
(49,632)
59
(897,411)
877,958
3,992

20,036
(27,105)
9
(889,623)
840,013
1,469

5,982
7,272
(3,447)
13,671
(6,840)
247,630
(31,759)
92,216
69,336
722,628

62,905
(22,211)
(14,893)
(12,180)
(1,447)
116,051
(17,912)
66,425
23,528
277,640

(83,085)
(118,136)
(148,059)
(349,280)

(91,280)
(36,012)
(16,845)
(144,137)

(10,714)
(41)
(10,755)
362,593
1,358,759
$ 1,721,352

—
(352)
(352)
133,151
1,101,174
$ 1,234,325

$

1,795

$

442

$

2,503

$

3,390

NEW YORK STATE CATHOLIC HEALTH PLAN, INC.
(d/b/a FIDELIS CARE NEW YORK) AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016
1.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The New York State Catholic Health Plan, Inc. (d/b/a Fidelis Care New York) (“Fidelis” or the “Plan”) is a not-for-profit membership corporation.
Fidelis provides or arranges for the provision of comprehensive health services, principally associated with Medicaid and Medicare Advantage
programs, under capitation agreements with the State of New York and U.S. government agencies.
Fidelis prepared the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements. In these unaudited consolidated financial statements, certain notes or
other financial information that are normally required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) have been
condensed or omitted if they substantially duplicate the disclosures contained in the annual audited consolidated financial statements. The
accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements should be read together with the audited consolidated financial statements and related
notes for the year ending December 31, 2016.
Fidelis is responsible for the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements. These unaudited consolidated financial statements include
all normal and recurring adjustments that are considered necessary for the fair presentation of the Plan’s financial position and operating results in
accordance with GAAP. In accordance with GAAP, Fidelis makes certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts. Actual results
could differ from those estimates and assumptions. In addition, revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities can vary during each quarter of the year.
Therefore, the results and trends in these interim financial statements may not be indicative of those for the full year.

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation—The unaudited consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Fidelis and its wholly owned subsidiaries,
Salus and Rego Park Office Tower, LLC (“RPOT”). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Basis of Accounting—The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).
Use of Estimates—The preparation of the unaudited consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accounts affected by significant
estimates include premium receivables, pharmacy rebates receivable, other receivables, reinsurance receivables, Affordable Care Act reinsurance, risk
adjustment and risk corridor receivables and payables, recoverability of goodwill, claims payable, accrued expenses, amounts due to third parties,
premium revenues, and cost of health care provided. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents—Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and are so near their original maturity dates that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates. Cash
equivalents exclude funds included in restricted deposits.
Short-Term Investments—Other—Short-term investments—other include certificates of deposit with original maturities greater than three months
and remaining maturities are less than one year whose carrying amount approximates fair value.
Premium Receivables and Revenues—Premium receivables and revenues are recorded in the month for which members are entitled to service.
Premiums represent payment in full for the complete Medicaid, Child Health Plus, Medicare Advantage, Medicaid Dual Advantage, Medicaid
Advantage Plus, Fidelis Care at Home, Health Benefit Exchange, Fully Integrated Duals Advantage, Health and Recovery Plan and Essential Plan with
the exception of the standard exclusions and the following additional exclusions: family planning, childcare, and methadone maintenance treatment
program physician/clinic. As a prepaid health services plan, premium revenues are provided by the State of New York and U.S. government agencies,
and therefore, there is no need for an allowance for uncollectible accounts. However, the amounts due from members under the Health Benefit
Exchange, Fidelis Care at Home and Essential Plan programs include provisions for uncollectible accounts. The balances in such provisions for
uncollectible accounts approximate $11,463,000 and $7,471,000 at September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016.
Premiums Received in Advance—Premiums collected in advance are reported as a liability in the accompanying unaudited consolidated balance
sheets. Any billed premiums that have not been received by the end of the period are included as premium receivables.
Health Care Reform or Affordable Care Act—The Plan is a participant in the New York Health Benefit Exchange within the NYSDOH established
pursuant to Health Care Reform. Under regulations established by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), HHS pays the Plan a
portion of the premium (“Premium Subsidy”) and/or a portion of the health care costs (“Cost Sharing Subsidy”) for low-income individual members. In
addition, HHS administers certain risk management programs.
Health Care Reform’s Reinsurance, Risk Adjustment and Risk Corridor (the “3Rs”)
Reinsurance—Health Care Reform established a temporary three-year reinsurance program, whereby all issuers of major medical commercial insurance
products and self-insured plan sponsors are required to contribute funding in amounts set by HHS. Funds collected will be utilized to reimburse issuers’
high claims costs incurred for qualified individual members. The expense related to this required funding is reflected as a reduction of premium
revenue. When annual claim costs incurred by the Plan’s qualified individual members exceed a specified attachment point, the Plan is entitled to
certain reimbursements from this program. HHS may change this formula after year-end depending on the monies available to pay reimbursements. The
Plan records a receivable and offsets health care costs to reflect an estimate of these recoveries.
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Risk Adjustment—Health Care Reform established a permanent risk adjustment program to transfer funds from qualified individual and small group
insurance plans with below average risk scores to those respective plans with above average risk scores. Based on the risk of Fidelis’ qualified plan
members relative to the average risk of members of other qualified plans in comparable markets, Fidelis estimates the ultimate risk adjustment
receivable or payable and reflects the pro-rata year-to-date impact as an adjustment to its premium revenue.
Risk Corridor—Health Care Reform established a temporary three-year risk sharing program for qualified individual and small group insurance plans.
Under this program the Plan makes (or receives) a payment to (or from) HHS based on the ratio of allowable costs to target costs (as defined by Health
Care Reform). The Plan records a risk corridor receivable or payable as an adjustment to premium revenue on a pro-rata year-to-date basis based on the
estimate of the ultimate risk sharing amount.
Pharmacy Rebates Receivable—The Plan has an arrangement with a Pharmacy Benefit Management (PBM) company to administer pharmaceutical
benefits to the Plan’s members. The Plan accrues pharmacy rebates monthly based on the terms of the applicable contracts, historical billing and
payment data, and other variables. Pharmacy rebates receivable are recorded as a reduction of health care costs. Pharmacy rebates are billed by the PBM
to the pharmaceutical manufacturers within two months of the completion of the quarter depending on the contractual terms.
Other Receivables—Other receivables include accrued interest receivable, insurance recoveries and other miscellaneous amounts due to the Plan.
Reinsurance Other Than Affordable Care Act Reinsurance—Reinsurance premiums are reported in health care costs and reinsurance recoveries are
deducted from health care costs.
Investments—Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair value and investments in debt securities are reported at fair value in the
unaudited consolidated balance sheets.
The Plan’s investment portfolio is designated as trading based on the Plan’s investment strategy and investment philosophies. Investment managers
may execute purchases and sales of investments in accordance with the Plan’s investment policy. All realized and unrealized gains and losses on
trading security investments have been recognized in investment income and losses—net in the unaudited consolidated statements of operations.
Investment income or loss includes realized gains and losses on investments, interest, dividends, and unrealized gains and losses on investments
classified as trading. Realized gains and losses are determined using the first-in, first-out method. Investments recognized as current assets are available
to support current operations. Investment income is recorded when earned.
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The Plan invests in a commingled mutual fund. Fair value is determined by the fund manager. Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, the
values determined by the investment managers may differ from the values that would have been used had a ready market for these investments existed.
Changes in fair value are included in investment income and losses—net in the accompanying unaudited consolidated statements of operations.
Restricted Deposits—Restricted deposits relate to amounts held in escrow in accordance with regulatory requirements.
Investments Noncurrent—Investments—Noncurrent include certificates of deposit with original maturities greater than three months and remaining
maturities that are more than one year whose carrying amount approximates fair value.
Equipment and Leasehold Improvements—Equipment and leasehold improvements are recorded at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets.
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the term of the related lease or the life of the improvement. Costs incurred relating to major
additions and improvements are capitalized and amortized over the useful life of the related project. The Plan commences the recognition of
depreciation expense on these projects once the project is completed.
The Plan capitalizes the costs for acquiring, developing, and testing software to meet the Plan’s internal needs. Capitalization of costs associated with
developing or obtaining computer software for internal use commences when the project is completed and it is probable the project will be used to
perform the function intended. Capitalized costs include (1) external direct cost of materials and services consumed in developing or obtaining
internal-use software and (2) payroll and payroll-related costs for employees who are directly associated with and devote time to the internal-use
software project. Capitalization of such costs cease no later than the point at which the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended use.
Internal-use software costs are amortized once the software is placed in service using the straight-line method over periods ranging from three to five
years.
Claims Payable—Claims payable consists of amounts of payments to be made on individual claims that have been reported to the Plan, as well as
estimates of claims incurred that have not yet been reported as of the unaudited consolidated balance sheet dates. Components of claims payable are
estimated, with the assistance of an external actuary, using various statistical methods that use both historical financial and operating data.
Management estimates additional components of claims payable using historical information and other operating data.
Claims payable also includes amounts payable for a quality incentive program (QIP) whereby certain of the Plan’s providers may qualify for additional
remuneration by achieving certain quality score thresholds based on the NYSDOH Quality Assurance Reporting Requirements. Management estimates
a liability for QIP payments based on historical information and estimates of the providers who will achieve the required thresholds.
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The Plan has a process to review claims from providers that were previously denied or pended for administrative reasons. The Plan records an estimated
reserve pertaining to such claims. These amounts are considered in the determination of the overall claims payable.
Management believes that the liability for claims payable is adequate to satisfy the ultimate claim liabilities. However, there is at least a possibility
that the estimates will change by a material amount in the near term since claims payable recorded in the accompanying unaudited consolidated
balance sheets was determined using a range of estimated amounts based on information available to management. The estimates for claims payable are
continually reviewed and adjusted as necessary as experience develops or new information becomes known. Such adjustments are included in current
operations.
Due to Third Parties—Due to third parties primarily consists of Health Care Reform Act of 2000 surcharges, adjustments to the quality incentive and
other components of the Medicaid premium rates, estimated amounts pertaining to potential premium overpayments, unrecouped reinsurance
premiums, Medicare risk payables, EP medical loss rebates, and liabilities associated with the 3Rs.
Changes in Net Assets—Net assets amounted to $2,138,817,000 and $1,769,999,000 at September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. The
change between these periods was driven by $368,993,000 of excess of revenues over expenses, partially offset by a $175,000 decline in temporary
restricted net assets during the nine months ended September 30, 2017.
Other Income/(Expense)—The Plan has significant financial investments, which are used to finance operations. All investment gains and losses
(realized gains and losses on investments, interest, dividends, and unrealized gains and losses on investments classified as trading and other than
trading) and expenses and losses, including interest expense, are reported as other income/(expense). Charitable donations and grants are also reported
in other income/(expense).
Cost of Health Care Provided—Cost of health care provided consists primarily of claims paid, claims in process, claims pending to physicians,
hospitals, and other health care providers, and an estimate of amounts incurred but not yet reported (IBNR). The Plan develops estimates for IBNR
claims using an actuarial process that is consistently applied. The actuarial models consider factors such as time from date of service to claim receipt,
provider contract rate changes, medical utilization, and other medical cost trends. Given the inherent variability of such estimates, the actual liability
could differ significantly from the amounts provided.
The Plan reimburses providers on a capitation, fee-for-service, or contractual basis. The cost of health care services provided is accrued in the period in
which the care is provided to a member based, in part, on estimates, including an accrual for medical services provided but not reported to the Plan. In
addition, the Plan provides remuneration to providers based on its QIP.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments—The Plan’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, investments, restricted deposits,
premiums receivable, and accounts payable. Unless otherwise specified, the carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximate their fair
value.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements and Update—In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued an update on
leases, ASU 2016-02. The ASU will require organizations that lease assets—referred to as “lessees”—to recognize on the balance sheet the assets and
liabilities for the rights and obligations created by those leases. The ASU on leases will take effect for public companies for fiscal years, and interim
periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2018. For all other organizations, the ASU on leases will take effect for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2019, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. Early application will be permitted
for all organizations. The Plan is currently evaluating the effect of the new leases accounting guidance.
In May 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-07—Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820). The amendments in this ASU remove the requirement to
categorize within the fair value hierarchy all investments for which fair value is measured using the net asset value per share practical expedient. The
amendments also remove the requirement to make certain disclosures for all investments that are eligible to be measured at fair value using the net
asset value per share practical expedient. This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016. The amendments should be
retrospectively applied to all periods presented and earlier adoption is permitted. The Plan adopted this guidance at December 31, 2016.
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606).” ASU 2014-09 will supersede existing
revenue recognition standards with a single model unless those contracts are within the scope of other standards (e.g., an insurance entity’s insurance
contracts). The revenue recognition principle in ASU 2014-09 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In addition,
new and enhanced disclosures will be required. Companies can adopt the new standard using either the full retrospective approach, a modified
retrospective approach with practical expedients, or a cumulative effect upon adoption approach. In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-14,
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers: Deferral of the Effective Date,” (“ASU No. 2015-14”) which deferred the effective date of ASU No. 2014-09
to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim reporting periods within annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2019. Early application is permitted as of annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. ASU No. 2015-14 allows for both
retrospective and modified retrospective methods of adoption of ASU No. 2014-09. The Plan is currently evaluating the effect of the new revenue
recognition guidance.
In May 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-09, Financial Services—Insurance (Topic 944): Disclosures about Short-Duration Contracts, which
expands the disclosure requirements for insurance companies that issue short-duration contracts. The new standard will increase the level of disclosure
around the Plan’s claims payable liability to include the following: claims development by year; claim frequency; a rollforward of the claims payable
liability; and a description of methods and assumptions used for determining the liability. It is effective for annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2016 and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The Plan is currently evaluating the effect of this
guidance.
- 10 -

The Plan has also determined that there have been no other recently issued, but not yet adopted, accounting standards that will have a material impact
on its unaudited consolidated financial statements.
3.

PREMIUM REVENUE
Premium revenue is derived substantially from the Medicaid and Medicare Advantage programs under capitation arrangements with the State of New
York and U.S. government agencies. For 2016, the premiums recorded are based upon management’s best estimate of the rates and differences between
the estimated rates and the approved rates are reflected in the period in which the rate is formally approved. For 2017, management modified its policy
and recorded revenues based upon draft rates received from the State of New York, which approximated actual rates. Laws and regulations governing
federal and state health care programs are complex and subject to interpretation for which noncompliance includes fines, penalties, and exclusion from
these programs. The Plan believes that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any pending or threatened
investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. Additionally, any future changes in Medicaid and Medicare Advantage funding could
have a material impact on the Plan.
Effective January 1, 2014, the Plan began providing health coverage to individual members through the New York Health Benefit Exchange within the
NYSDOH under the provisions of the Health Care Reform. Regulations and interpretive guidance on many provisions of the Health Care Reform Law
have been issued to date by various regulatory bodies, of which certain provisions of the law require additional guidance and clarification in the form
of regulations and interpretations. The Plan believes that it is in compliance with the applicable Health Care Reform laws and regulations that would
have a material impact on the unaudited operations and financial results of the Plan.
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4.

INVESTMENTS AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS
The composition of investments and restricted deposits as of September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, is as follows (in thousands):

Short - term investments—other
Investments:
Debt securities:
U.S. government and agency obligations
U.S. agency mortgage- backed securities
State and municipal obligations
Corporate obligations
Non- U.S. agency mortgage - backed securities
Non- U.S. agency asset - backed securities
Total debt securities
Equity securities
Mutual funds
Alternative investments
Total investments

September 30,
2017

December 31,
2016

$

549,387

$

431,330

$

$

$

54,615
31,636
2,048
87,269
13,385
20,786
209,739
156,955
283,910
46,487
697,091

$

71,873
42,050
1,352
102,115
15,381
26,299
259,070
165,750
312,683
28,673
766,176

Restricted deposits:
Certificates of deposit
Total restricted deposits

$
$

449,447
449,447

$
$

366,362
366,362

Investments—noncurrent

$

182

$

162

As of September 30, 2017, the Plan has been investing excess cash in short duration certificates of deposit in an effort to earn additional interest income.
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5.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market data obtained from sources
independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own
assumption about market participant assumptions (unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy). The fair value hierarchy is as
follows:
Level 1—Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets in active markets. Active markets are those in which transactions for the asset or liability occur
with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
Level 2—Other observable inputs, either directly or indirectly, including:
•

Quoted prices for similar assets in active markets

•

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in nonactive markets (few transactions, limited information, noncurrent prices, high variability over
time, etc.)

•

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset (interest rates, yield curves, volatilities, default rates, etc.)

•

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by other observable market data

Level 3—Unobservable inputs that cannot be corroborated by observable market data.
In instances in which the inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the fair value measurement has been
determined based on the lowest-level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The Plan’s assessment of the significance of
a particular item to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, including the consideration of inputs specific to the asset and/or
liability.
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2, and 3 during the nine months ended September 30, 2017.
The Plan measures its financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair value of each class of financial instrument:
Cash and Cash Equivalents—The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value as maturities are in the near future and/or
include money market funds and short-term, highly liquid investments, that are based on quoted prices and actively traded. Cash and cash equivalents
are classified as Level 1.
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Short-Term Investments—Other—The carrying value of short-term investments—other approximates fair value as maturities are in the near future.
Short-term investments—other are classified as Level 1.
Investments—Noncurrent—Investments—noncurrent include certificates of deposit that are due in excess of one year whose carrying
value approximates fair value. Investments in certificates of deposit due in excess of one year are classified as Level 1. All other investments are
classified as Level 2.
Debt Securities—The estimated fair values of debt securities are based on quoted market prices and/or other market data for the same or comparable
instruments and transactions in establishing the prices. Level 1 debt securities are comprised primarily of U.S. government and agency obligations. Fair
values of debt securities that do not trade on a regular basis in active markets are classified as Level 2.
Equity Securities—Fair value estimates for publicly traded equity securities are based on quoted market prices and/or other market data for the same or
comparable instruments and transactions in establishing the prices. Fair values of publicly traded equity securities are classified as Level 1.
Mutual Funds—Fair value estimates for shares of registered investment companies are based on quoted market prices that represent the net asset value
(NAV) of shares held. Fair values of mutual funds are classified as Level 1 based upon publicly available NAV data.
Alternative Investments (Equity Method)—The estimated fair values of commingled funds (alternative investments) are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting for which no quoted market prices are readily available. The estimated fair value for these types of investments are determined
based upon information provided by the fund managers. Such information is based on the pro rata interest in the NAV of the underlying investments,
which approximates fair value.
Included in the Plan’s investment portfolio are investments in certain funds that report fair value using a calculated NAV.
6.

GOODWILL
The following table summarizes the change in the Plan’s goodwill balance during 2017 (in thousands):
Balance—January 1, 2017
Acquisitions
Balance—September 30, 2017

$15,850
—
$15,850

Goodwill is reviewed annually for impairment on December 31, or more frequently upon the occurrence of trigger events. Based on the Plan’s
assessment, no goodwill impairment was recorded for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 and 2016.
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7.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following as of September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016 (in thousands):

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

September 30,
2017

December 31,
2016

$

$

$

8.

5,445
153,598
159,043

$

16,277
172,022
188,299

LONG-TERM DEBT
On December 12, 2016, Fidelis entered into Term Loan Agreements (TLAs) with three leading financial institutions, each as a “lender” and collectively
the “lenders”. The lenders provided a seven-year unsecured term loan facility in the aggregate principal amount of $100,000,000 payable in equal
quarterly installments. Proceeds from the TLAs were used by Fidelis for strategic and other business purposes.
The interest rate under the TLAs is variable and is determined at Fidelis’ option as: (i) the one, two, three or six month Adjusted London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR), plus the lender’s Applicable Margin or (ii) the Prime Rate plus the lender’s Applicable Margin. The Applicable Margin can
range from 0.75% to 1.80% based upon Fidelis’ deposit levels with the lenders. The weighted average interest rate on the TLAs for the nine months
ended September 30, 2017 was 2.0%.
The future maturities of long-term debt consist of the following (in thousands):
Period Ending
September 30

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter

$ 3,571
14,286
14,286
14,286
14,286
28,571
89,286
(14,286)
$ 75,000

Less current portion
Total long-term debt

The Plan had unsecured lines of credit in the amounts of $180,000,000 of September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016 with an interest rate established
by the lending institutions and agreed to by the Plan. The lines of credit expire during 2018. At September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, no
amounts were outstanding under the lines of credit. The provisions of the lines of credit require the Plan to maintain specified net worth, liquidity and
other conditions. At September 30, 2017, all covenant requirements associated with the unsecured lines of credit were met.
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9.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases—The Plan is the lessee of administrative facilities and equipment under noncancelable operating leases. All facility leases have early
termination clauses.
Other Matters—The Plan is involved in litigation and claims disputes with providers arising in the normal course of business. The ultimate outcome
of these cases cannot be predicted at this time. Management does not believe that the ultimate outcome of these matters will have a materially adverse
effect on the financial position of the Plan.
The Plan is subject to ongoing examinations and oversight by the State of New York with respect to financial condition, market conduct and other
regulatory matters. The Plan is not aware of any existing or pending investigations regarding noncompliance with applicable laws and regulations that
would have a material impact on the operations of the Plan.

10.

CLAIMS PAYABLE
Claims payable includes reserves for IBNR claims, claims received but not processed, and other liabilities incurred in connection with the cost of
health care provided, provider incentives, pharmacy costs, and other reserves in connection with health care costs.
Claims payable also includes management’s estimated liability for QIP payments based on historical information and the providers expected to
achieve the thresholds required for payment. As of September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Plan recorded approximately $101,636,000 and
$60,365,000, respectively, for payments under the QIP that management estimates the Plan will pay.

11.

CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK
At September 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Plan had cash balances in financial institutions that exceed federal depository insurance limits.
Management believes that the credit risk related to these deposits is minimal.
The Plan receives substantially all of its premium revenue through various programs of the State of New York and U.S. government agencies. These
programs are based on complex laws and regulations. Noncompliance with such laws and regulations could result in fines, penalties, and exclusion
from such programs.

12.

CENTENE TRANSACTION
On September 12, 2017, Fidelis entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (hereinafter, the “APA”) with Centene Corporation, a Delaware corporation
(“Centene”). Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the APA, substantially all of Fidelis’ insurance operations, assets and liabilities
will be sold to and assumed by Centene. Following the closing of the transaction, Fidelis will be divested of its insurance operations, but will remain
an independent 501(c)(3) tax exempt organization.
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The corporate members of Fidelis are the eight Diocesan Bishops of the Roman Catholic Dioceses in the State of New York. At the closing of the
transactions contemplated by the APA, Fidelis will receive consideration, subject to certain adjustments, consisting of $3,250,000,000 in cash and, at
the option of Centene, additional cash or shares of Centene’s common stock valued at $500,000,000, of which $375,000,000 will be placed in escrow
to secure any potential indemnification obligations of Fidelis to Centene. Fidelis will retain certain cash and investment assets as well as its Rego Park
Office Building.
The closing of the transactions contemplated by the APA is subject to the satisfaction or waiver of customary closing conditions, including, without
limitation, certain approval, notice or similar requirements with applicable regulatory authorities. On September 12, 2017, the Board of Directors and
Members of Fidelis approved the execution of the APA and the transactions contemplated thereunder.
The completion of the transactions contemplated by the APA is not conditioned on receipt of financing by Centene. The APA is expected to close in
early 2018, subject to the receipt of required regulatory approvals and satisfaction or waiver of other closing conditions.
13.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
During the 4 th quarter of 2017, the Plan became aware of the uncertainty of future funding related to Cost Sharing Reductions (CSRs) by the Federal
government for the Essential Plan. The NYSDOH indicated that this issue would significantly impact the State’s current fiscal year performance if
funding were to cease for CSRs and that additional actions would be necessary. Subsequently, on January 9, 2018, the NYSDOH retroactively
reinstated the 2016 EP medical loss rebates under its contractual agreement. On January 18, 2018, the Plan made a payment of $117,975,000 to the
NYSDOH for the 2016 EP medical loss rebates. The Plan recorded this amount in December of 2017.
Fidelis has evaluated subsequent events through February 9, 2018, which is the date the unaudited consolidated financial statements were available to
be issued.
******
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